
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, July 18, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Brar, Lawson, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  7.18.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing new Kern Medical resident 
physicians beginning July 1, 2018 –  
MAKE PRESENTATION 
 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

June 20, 2018 –  
APPROVE 

 
CA 
5) Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 808-2015 with United Neuroscience, Inc., 

an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Medicine for the period October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2019, revising the 
compensation methodology for seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage, and 
increasing the maximum payable by $455,590, from $2,758,000 to $3,213,590, to 
cover the term –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE THE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  7.18.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 20117 with LocumTenens.com, 

an independent contractor, for temporary physician staffing services for the period May 
22, 2017 through May 22, 2018, extending the term one year from May 23, 2018 to 
May 22, 2019, increasing the maximum payable by $500,000, from $250,000 to 
$750,000, to cover the extended term, effective May 23, 2018 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with General Electric Company, by and through its GE 

Healthcare division, an independent contractor, for purchase of a digital fluoroscopy 
machine for the Department of Radiology, in an amount not to exceed $462,590 –  

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
8) Proposed retroactive Lease/Purchase Supplement to Agreement 086-2017 with IBM 

Credit LLC, an independent contractor, for additional financing of the Cerner electronic 
health record in an amount not to exceed $3,826,601 plus interest, effective July 1, 
2018 – 

 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-079 with Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O., 

a contract employee, for professional medical services in the Department of Medicine 
for the period November 26, 2016 through November 25, 2019, adding call coverage 
for interventional cardiology, and increasing the maximum payable by $512,000, from 
$3,000,000 to $3,512,000, to cover the term, effective August 1, 2018 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 

 
CA 
10) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 15 to Agreement 98-0670 with 3M Company, an 

independent contractor, for purchase of coding software, education and maintenance 
to support the electronic health record, for a term of five years from June 21, 2018 
through June 20, 2023, in amount not to exceed $1,961,692 – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  

 
CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 5 to Agreement 1118-2009 with Health Care 

Interpretation Network (HCIN), an independent contractor, for language interpretation 
services from September 9, 2009 through June 30, 2018, extending the term for two 
years from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, revising the compensation 
methodology, and increasing the maximum payable by $250,000, from $607,391 to 
$857,391, to cover the extended term, effective July 1, 2018 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  7.18.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

CA 
12) Proposed resolution in the matter of delegation of authority to the Chief Executive 

Officer of the Kern County Hospital Authority to sign group purchasing organization 
vendor contracts that contain nonstandard terms and conditions –  
APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 

 
13) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
14) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
15) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of June 30, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

16) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  

 
17) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  
 
18) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
19) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521; Unrepresented 
Employees (Government Code Section 54957.6) – 

 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 15, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  7.18.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  7.18.18 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

22) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF JUNE 30, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Claim in the matter of Christina Ball 
B) Claim in the matter of Kimberly A. Shaw 
C) Application for leave to file a late claim in the matter of Jennifer Granados 
D) Amendment to Complaint for Damages in the matter of Isai Lopez v. Kern County 

Hospital Authority, et al., Kern County Superior Court Case No. BCV-18-100479 
E) Notice of Assignment, Lien & Security Interest in the matter of Brandy Hernandez aka 

Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, 
Case No. BCV-17-102820 

F) Notices of Intent to File Legal Action (5) in the matter of Kathryn A. Kodner 
G) Notices of Intent to File Legal Action (5) in the matter of Laurie Kodner 
H) Notices of Intent to File Legal Action (5) in the matter of Michael Kodner 
 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, June 20, 2018 

 
11:30 A.M. 

 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 
Directors absent: Berjis 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

ERICA EASTON, KERN MEDICAL FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HEARD 
REGARDING 20 ARVIN HIGH SCHOOL BRIDGE CAMP STUDENTS FOCUSED ON 
HEALTH CAREER PATHWAYS AND THEIR MINI DOC FOR A DAY EXPERIENCE 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
DIRECTOR MCGAULEY EXPRESSED HER APPRECIATION FOR THE 
OPPOURTUNITY TO BE A MEMBER OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL 
AUTHORITY INAUGUARL BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
 
DIRECTOR MCGAULEY PRESENTED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER RUSSELL V. 
JUDD WITH A MONETARY DONATION TO BE USED FOR PSYCHIATRIC 
SERVICES AT KERN MEDICAL  
 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER CONGRATULATED DIRECTOR SISTRUNK ON HER RECENT 
REAPPOINTMENT TO THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF 
GOVERNORS FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM, EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018 
 
CHAIRMAN BIGLER ANNOUNCED RAJI BRAR WILL HAS BEEN APPOINTED BY 
THE KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO THE KERN COUNTY 
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD OF GOVERNORS FOR A THREE-YEAR TERM, 
EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018 

 
RECOGNITION 

 
1) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing Colleen McGauley for her 

service on the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors –  
MADE PRESENTATION 
 

2) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the winner of the 2018 Kern 
Medical Research Forum – 
MADE PRESENTATION 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on  

May 16, 2017 –  
APPROVED 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

 
CA 
6) Proposed retroactive Agreement with The College of American Pathologists (CAP), an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of 
CAP eFRM software license and support for the CAP electronic Cancer Checklist from 
June 5, 2018 through June 4, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $35,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 033-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 

 
CA 
7) Proposed Agreement with Cardinal Health, Inc., an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for LeaderNet pharmacy administration services, 
for a term of two years effective upon approval by Cardinal, in an amount not to exceed 
$7,792 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
034-2018 WITH CARDINAL HEALTH, INC. AND ANY OTHER DOCUMENT NEEDED 
TO PARTICIPATE IN LEADERNET SERVICES 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
8) Proposed Agreement with Cerner Corporation, an independent contractor, containing 

nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of additional modules for the 
Millennium Project, effective June 30, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $3,000,000 
over seven (7) years –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 035-2018 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with Corepoint Health, LLC, an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of Corepoint Integration 
Engine software license and services for the Millennium Project, for a term of one year 
effective June 20, 2018, in an amount not to exceed $307,150 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 036-2018 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-041 with the County of Kern, as 

represented by the County Administrative Office, Kern County Sheriff’s Office, and 
Kern County Probation Department, for the provision of correctional medicine services 
to in-custody inmates and juvenile wards for the period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 
2018, extending the term for two years from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, in the 
amount of $21,767,469 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (revenue) –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 037-2018 
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

 
CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Agreement with the County of Kern, as represented by the County 

Administrative Office and Kern County Sheriff’s Office, for correctional medicine 
services at Kern County Justice Facility from May 12, 2018 through June 30, 2020, in 
the amount of $8,557,346 for Fiscal Year 2018-2019 (revenue) –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 038-2018 
SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO FORM BY COUNSEL 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 

 
CA 
12) Proposed appointment of Moss-Adams LLC to audit the Kern County Hospital Authority 

Deferred Compensation Plan for Physician Employees – 
 APPROVED 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
13) Proposed Amendment No. 4 to Agreement 1048-2010 with Total Renal Care, Inc., an 

independent contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for acute 
dialysis services for the period December 1, 2010 through November 30, 2019, 
extending the term for two years from December 1, 2019 through November 30, 2021, 
and increasing the maximum payable by $1,600,000, from $2,925,000 to $4,525,000, 
to cover the extended term –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 039-2018 

 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
14) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employees Scott Cote, as 

Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist; Rosa Martinez, as Extra Help Physician Assistant; 
Debbie Pershadsingh, as Extra Help Special Projects Manager; and Wedad M. 
Rizkalla, M.D., as Associate-Pediatrics, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 
hours, whichever occurs first, effective July 1, 2018 – 

 APPROVED 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
CA 
15) Proposed retroactive Agreement with Korchek Technologies, LLC, an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of software and 
data migration services, for a term of one year effective upon installation, in an amount 
not to exceed $300,000 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 040-2018 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

 
CA 
16) Proposed renewal and binding of insurance coverages for hospital professional liability, 

general liability and umbrella/excess liability, excess workers’ compensation and 
employers liability, automobile liability, helipad liability, directors and officers liability, 
employment practices liability, crime, privacy and securing (cyber) liability, premises 
pollution liability, underground storage tank liability, property (building, equipment, 
business interruption, earthquake and flood), employed lawyers liability, and fiduciary 
liability from July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2019, with option to finance selected 
premiums through IPFS Corporation of California and CSAC-EIA in an amount not to 
exceed $1,528,599 –  
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN PREMIUM 
FINANCE AGREEMENT 042-2018 AND CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 

 
CA 
17) Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-042 with Trans-West Security 

Services, Inc., an independent contractor, for the provision of security services for the 
period July 1, 2016 through June 30, 2018, extending the term for two years from July 
1, 2018 through June 30, 2020, and increasing the maximum payable by $3,200,000, 
from $2,412,834 to $5,612,834, to cover the extended term –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 041-2018 
Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 

 
CA 
18) Proposed approval of Medical Staff policy and procedure regarding 

Evaluation/Management (E/M) Service Documentation Provided by Students – 
 APPROVED 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
19) Request to employ retired Kern County Hospital Authority employee Rose Bauer, as 

Extra Help Clinical Pharmacist, for the period ending June 30, 2019, or 960 hours, 
whichever occurs first, effective July 1, 2018 – 

 APPROVED   
 Sistrunk-McLaughlin: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
20) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 McLaughlin-McGauley: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
21) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Pelz- Sistrunk: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 6  

 

CA 
22) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of May 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Lawson-Pelz: 6 Ayes; 1 Absent - Berjis 
 
 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McLaughlin-McGauley 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

23) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
24) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
25) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
26) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
 (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Name of case: Arthur Gray v. 

County of Kern, et al., United States District Court Case No. 1:14-cv-00204-LJO-JLT – 
SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
McLaughlin-McGauley  
 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 

Item No. 23 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 
practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR 
LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR MCGAULEY; 1 ABSENT - DIRECTOR BERJIS), 
THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PRACTITIONERS RECOMMENDED FOR INITIAL 
APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF PROCTORING, 
REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL PRIVILEGES, CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS, AND 
VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors                                                   
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings     
  6.20.18 
 
 

Page | 7  

 

Item No. 24 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 
taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 25 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 
designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
Item No. 26 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2)) Name of case: Arthur 
Gray v. County of Kern, et al., United States District Court Case No. 1:14-cv-00204-
LJO-JLT – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 
 
 
 

ADJOURNED TO WEDNESDAY, JULY 18, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
McGauley 
 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
 Kern County Hospital Authority 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 808-2015 with United Neurosciences, Inc. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve, Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 2 to Agreement 808-2015 with 
United Neuroscience, Inc., an independent contractor, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Medicine for the period October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2019, revising the compensation methodology 
for seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage, and increasing the maximum payable by $455,590, from 
$2,758,000 to $3,213,590, to cover the term. 
 
 
 



1 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – United Neuroscience, Inc.) 
  

This Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered 

into this _____ day of __________, 2018, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local 

unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and 

United Neuroscience, Inc., a California professional medical corporation (“Contractor”), with its 

principal place of business located at 11117 Torbay Drive, Bakersfield, California 93311. 

 

RECITALS 

 

(a) Authority and Contractor have heretofore entered into an Agreement for 

Professional Services (Kern County Agt. #808-2015, dated October 27, 2015), Assignment of 

Agreement (Kern County Agt. #338-2016, dated March 1, 2016), and Amendment No. 1 (Agt. 

#2017-047, dated July 14, 2017) (collectively, the “Agreement”), for the period October 1, 2015 

through September 30, 2019, whereby Physician provides professional medical services to 

patients of KMC in one or more clinical departments and teaching services to medical students 

and resident physicians; and   

 

 (b) It is the intent of the parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 

payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 

Contractor; and 

 

(c) The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 

hereinafter set forth; and 

  

 (d)  The Agreement is amended effective July 18, 2018; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

1. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.1, Compensation, subparagraph 4.1.7, 

Seizure and Epilepsy Monitoring Coverage, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 

following: 

 

“4.1.7 Seizure and Epilepsy Monitoring Coverage.  Authority shall pay 

Contractor a fixed fee in the amount of $500,000 per year at the rate of $41,667 

per month for seizure and epilepsy monitoring coverage provided by Group 

Physicians in the outpatient clinic, ICU, and inpatient epilepsy monitoring unit.” 

 

3. Section 4, Payment for Services, paragraph 4.3, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in its 

entirety and replaced with the following: 



2 

 

 

“4.3 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement will not 

exceed $3,213,590 over the four-year term of this Agreement.”   

 

4. Amendment No. 1 to Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services, shall be deleted in its entirety and 

replaced with Amendment No. 2 to Exhibit “A,” Scope of Services, attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference. 

 

5. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined, shall have the 

meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 

 

6. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

state of California. 

 

7. This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, but all of which take together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

8. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions and covenants of the Agreement 

and any and all amendments thereto shall remain in full force and effect.   

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



3 

 

 IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 2 

as of the day and year first written above. 

 

UNITED NEUROSCIENCE, INC. 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Kiron Thomas, M.D. 

    Its President 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Chairman 

    Board of Governors 

 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 

KERN MEDICAL CENTER 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    VP & General Counsel 

    Kern County Hospital Authority 

 

 
Amend2.United Neuroscience.071018 

 

      

 

 

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



4 

 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 

TO 

EXHIBIT “A” 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

United Neuroscience, Inc. 

 

1. Telemedicine Coverage: 

a) Designated Group Physicians shall provide expertise related to various stroke and 

cerebrovascular diseases via telemedicine services. 

b) Designated Group Physicians shall provide emergency department and inpatient stroke 

coverage for 24 hours per day, 365 days per year. 

c) Designated Group Physicians agree to provide telemedicine services in one (1) week 

blocks.  

d) A monthly call schedule shall be prepared by Contractor and sent seven (7) days prior to 

the beginning of each month.  Changes to the call schedule may be made from time-to-

time.  The call schedule shall be sent to KMC via e-mail. 

e) Contractor and Designated Group Physicians agree to evaluate all patients regardless of 

their ability to pay.  

 

2. PSC Certification: 

a) Contractor shall support KMC in its efforts to maintain a primary stroke center (“PSC”) 

accredited by The Joint Commission. 

b) PSC certification requires a physician champion for accreditation by The Joint 

Commission (“Certification”).  KMC has a neurologist on its medical staff who serves as 

the medical director.  Contractor agrees to assign a Designated Group Physician to serve 

as medical director if necessary.   

c) PSC Certification requires a nurse practitioner or registered nurse to serve as the stroke 

coordinator for data collection, quality improvement, and program coordination.  KMC 

shall assign a registered nurse or nurse practitioner to serve as the stroke coordinator. 

 

3. Systems of Care: 

a) An initial request for consultation via telemedicine will made via cell phone or text page.  

b) Once a request is made, the Designated Group Physician on-call will evaluate the patient 

via telemedicine. 

c) A response time of 15 minutes is expected between the initial request for consultation and 

the telemedicine evaluation. 

d) Neuroimaging will be available via the KMC web-based PACS system to each 

Designated Group Physician, or the images will be made available via a high definition 

web-based camera.   

e) Once the patient has been evaluated, a recommendation for tissue plasminogen activator 

(tPA) or endovascular clot retrieval will be made. 

f) Designated Group Physicians may recommend the patient for transfer if tPA is given or 

endovascular clot retrieval is recommended.  However, the decision to transfer a patient 

remains at the discretion of the KMC physician. 

g) If the patient is admitted to KMC, admission orders will be written by the KMC 

physician. 



5 

 

h) Following consultation, the on-call Designated Group Physician will dictate a procedure 

note into the KMC EHR within 24 hours.  

 

4. Inpatient Stroke Consultations and Follow-up: 

a) Designated Group Physicians shall provide inpatient consultative services for ward and 

ICU patients that display symptoms of acute stroke.  

b) The Systems of Care outlined in section 3 above shall apply to ward and ICU 

consultations.  

 

5. Academic Standing: To maintain the highest quality of stroke care, all designated Group 

Physicians shall obtain eight (8) CME credits related to stroke care each year (e.g., acute, sub-

acute, rehabilitation, secondary prevention)  

 

6. Outpatient Neurology Clinic Coverage: Contractor and Group Physicians shall provide 

clinic coverage no fewer than five (5) one-half days each week (except holidays), inclusive of the 

four (4) one-half day clinics required of the Medical Director as set forth in section 10 below.  

Outpatient neurology clinics may occur with each patient evaluated in the presence of a resident 

or medical student or as non-resident clinics as assigned by the Department chair and/or KMC 

administration.  Outpatient neurology clinic services shall be a combination of general 

neurology, epilepsy, and other neurology services, which shall be mutually agreed upon by 

Contractor, the Department chair, and KMC administration. 

 

7. Inpatient Neurology Coverage: Contractor and Group Physicians shall provide 

mutually agreed upon daily staff coverage when other neurology faculty at KMC is unavailable, 

for inpatient consultative rounds on medical/surgical and ICU patients, with on-service resident 

physicians and medical students when present. 

 

8. Other Neurology Clinical Responsibilities: Contractor and Group Physicians shall 

provide interpretation of adult electroencephalograms, nerve conduction studies, and 

electromyelograms as mutually agreed upon with the Department chair. 

 

9. Interventional Radiology Coverage: Contractor shall provide call coverage 24 hours 

per day, 365 days per year, including without limitation, interventional radiology coverage for 

the neurology service.  Contractor shall provide a monthly schedule of covering Group 

Physicians by the 20th day of each month.  Group Physician(s) shall be available by telephone to 

answer questions and for on-site consultations when requested.  Group Physicians shall perform 

neuro-interventional radiology procedures as indicated by the patient’s condition.  Group 

Physician(s) shall coordinate with the Department of Radiology to optimize the use and service 

of the interventional radiology suite.   

 

10. Seizure and Epilepsy Monitoring Coverage:  

a) Contractor shall assign a Designated Group Physician to serve as the Medical Director of 

the Epilepsy Monitoring Unit (EMU) and Epilepsy Program.  Designated Group 

Physician shall be Hari Prasad Kunhi Veedu, M.D. 

b) The Medical Director or other Group Physicians shall provide clinical services in support 

of the EMU and Epilepsy Program as follows: 



6 

 

 Provide daily neurology coverage in the EMU, ICU/DOU, and inpatient wards for 

patients receiving continuous EEG monitoring and/or Epilepsy Program patients. 

 Provide clinic coverage no fewer than four (4) one-half days each week (except 

holidays) for the Epilepsy Program and general neurology outpatient clinic coverage.  

Outpatient clinics may occur with each patient evaluated in the presence of a resident 

or medical student or as non-resident clinics as assigned by the Department chair 

and/or KMC administration.  Outpatient neurology clinic services shall include a 

combination of general neurology, epilepsy, and other neurology services, which 

shall be mutually agreed upon by Contractor, the Department chair, and KMC 

administration. 

 Provide professional interpretation of EEG for patients in the EMU, ICU/DOU and 

other inpatient units, as well as all other ambulatory and clinic settings. 

 Provide supervision of residents, medical students and mid-level practitioners. 

 Provide electronic or telephonic consultation on an as-needed basis. 

c) The Medical Director shall: 

 Work collaboratively with KMC staff and physicians to achieve accreditation by the 

National Association of Epilepsy Centers (NAEC) as a Level 4 center by January 1, 

2020, in accordance with the 2018 NAEC Accreditation Criteria for Level 4 Centers 

set forth in Exhibit “A-1,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 

 Provide leadership and clinical oversight of the epilepsy center. 

 Provider leadership and support for the education and training of the medical and 

clinical staff involved in epilepsy care. 

 Provide leadership and support in the development of written care protocols and 

obtain approval of such protocols through appropriate KMC medical staff 

committees. 

 Provide oversight to coordinate performance improvement activities. 

 Participate in and support KMC academic programs that relate to epilepsy program 

teaching and research. 

 Participate in a leadership role at KMC and in the community. 

 Work to ensure excellent care through chart review, direction observation, and data 

analysis. 

 

11. Medical Education, Teaching, and Academic Responsibilities: Contractor and Group 

Physicians shall: 

a) Provide clinical mentoring to and evaluation of residents and medical students. 

b) Supervise residents and medical students assigned to the neurology service. 

c) Obtain academic appointment at David Geffen School of Medicine at University of 

California, Los Angeles, or one or more California-based medical schools, and maintain 

such appointment throughout the term of this Agreement. 

d) Provide up to 12 didactic and Department lectures as assigned by the Department 

program director and based upon standard curriculum. 

e) Provide medical education to residents and medical students during inpatient rounds. 

f) Provide medical education in the clinic setting. 

g) Serve as attending faculty in the Department. 

 



7 

 

12. Service Expectations: 

a) Contractor and Group Physicians shall perform all services for KMC patients, including 

but not limited to neuro-interventional radiology procedures, electroencephalograms, 

nerve conduction studies, and electromyelograms at KMC or a KMC location, as 

appropriate.  Procedures and studies for KMC patients performed at non-KMC locations 

must be pre-approved by KMC in advance of the procedure.  Contractor shall require that 

Group Physicians report on time for all scheduled procedures.  Outpatient neurology 

clinic services may be performed at any KMC designated site. 

b) Telemedicine services shall commence no later than October 1, 2105.  Outpatient 

neurology clinic coverage shall commence no later than November 1, 2105.  Neuro-

interventional radiology coverage shall commence no later than January 1, 2016. 

 

13. Administrative Responsibilities:  Contractor shall require that Group Physicians: 

a) Attend Department staff meetings and the annual medical staff meeting. 

b) Participate in medical staff committees as assigned by the president of the medical staff. 

 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 

  



8 

 

EXHIBIT “A-1” 

2018 NAEC ACCREDITATION CRITERIA FOR LEVEL 4 CENTERS 

 

[Attached] 







 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 20117 with LocumTenens.Com 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 
20117 with LocumTenens.com, an independent contractor, for temporary physician staffing services for the 
period May 22, 2017 through May 22, 2018, extending the term one year from May 23, 2018 to May 22, 2019, 
increasing the maximum payable by $500,000, from $250,000 to $750,000, to cover the extended term, 
effective May 23, 2018. 
 
 





 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Agreement with General Electric Company for the purchase of a Precision 600FP 
Fluoroscopy.  
 
Recommended Action: Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign  
 
Summary:   
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Agreement with General Electric Company for the 
purchase of the GE Precision 600FP.  The GE Precision 600FP is a digital fluoroscopy machine designed to acquire 
digital images on a flat panel detector, with continuous fluoroscopy to record and archive live imaging.  The 
600FP reduces radiation to patients and staff, accommodates bariatric patients, has a larger viewing capacity, 
and will streamline workflow, increase throughput, and improve patient satisfaction. 
 
Our current fluoroscopy machine is the only unit in the hospital and it is at end of life.  We have been able to use 
third party parts for repairs, but the availability of these parts has declined significantly.  If the current machine 
becomes inoperable, we will be required to transfer patients to other facilities for fluoroscopy imaging.  
Transferring patients is costly both for the expense of the exam and for transportation costs and creates a delay 
of care for the patient. For these reasons, Kern Medical has proposed purchasing the unit now, rather than 
waiting for the current unit to fail.  
 

              The unit cost will not exceed $462,590 and the first year of service for the unit is included in this cost.   































 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  
  
July 18, 2018 
  
Subject:  Proposed Lease/Purchase Agreement and Supplements with IBM Credit, LLC 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board to approve the proposed retroactive Lease/Purchase Supplement to 
Agreement 086-2017 with IBM Credit LLC, an independent contractor, for additional financing of the Cerner 
electronic health record in an amount not to exceed $3,826,601 plus interest, effective July 1, 2018. 
 
 
 
 

























BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
In the matter of:             Resolution No. ____________ 
 
FINANCING THE PURCHASE OF SOFTWARE  
AND EQUIPMENT FOR THE IMPLEMENTATION  
OF THE CERNER MILLENIUM PROJECT FOR  
THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director ___________, 
seconded by Director ___________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 18th 
day of July, 2018, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been delivered 
to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                    MONA ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Kern County Hospital Authority (“Hospital Authority”) has the power 

to incur indebtedness and to borrow money and issue bonds, subject to the approval of the 
Board of Supervisors; and 

 
(b) The Hospital Authority also has the power to purchase supplies, equipment, 

materials, property, and services, and the power to enter into contracts, pursuant to Chapter 



Page 2 of 2 
 

5.5 (commencing with Section 101852) of Part 4 of Division 101 of the Health and Safety 
Code; and 
 
  (c) The Hospital Authority has entered into an agreement with Cerner 
Corporation to orchestrate the implementation of the Cerner Electronic Health Record 
which requires the purchase of software and equipment; and 
 

(d) The Hospital Authority has advised the County Administrative Office 
(“CAO”) of its intent to borrow money for the lease/purchase of software and equipment 
and the CAO, after review, has opined that no Board of Supervisors approval is required;  
 

(e) IBM Credit LLC desires to lend Hospital Authority monies in the 
lease/purchase of this software and equipment and requires a resolution by the Hospital 
Authority’s governing body to do so.  
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board finds the best interests of the Hospital Authority shall be served 
by entering into an agreement to borrow monies for the lease/purchase of equipment.  

 
3. This Board previously authorized Kern Medical Center to borrow monies 

from IBM Credit LLC for the lease/purchase of this equipment on November 15, 2017 in 
the amount of $5,565,720 and hereby authorizes the further borrowing of monies in the 
amount of $3,826,601.  

 
4. This Board foresees the necessity to borrow monies in the future from IBM 

Credit LLC in an amount not to exceed $610,000 and hereby authorizes the Chief 
Executive Officer to enter into such Lease/Purchase Supplement. 

 
5. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force and operative 

as of the 18th day of July 2018. 
 
6.  The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
   
  County Administrative Office 
  Kern Medical Center 
  IBM Credit LLC 
   



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-079 with Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O. 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 1 to Agreement 2016-079 with 
Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O., a contract employee, for professional medical services in the Department of 
Medicine for the period November 26, 2016 through November 25, 2019, adding call coverage for interventional 
cardiology, and increasing the maximum payable by $512,000, from $3,000,000 to $3,512,000, to cover the 

term, effective August 1, 2018. 
 



1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

CONTRACT EMPLOYEE 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O.) 
 

 This Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement for Professional Services is made and entered 

into this _____ day of __________, 2018, between the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local 

unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and 

Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O. (“Physician”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

 (a) Authority and Physician have heretofore entered into an Agreement for 

Professional Services (Agt. #2016-079, dated September 21, 2016) (the “Agreement”), for the 

period November 26, 2016 through November 25, 2019, for professional medical services in the 

Department of Medicine at KMC; and 

 

 (b) It is the intent of the parties to have the terms of the Agreement provide for the 

payment of all reasonably projected costs and expenses related to the services provided by 

Physician; and 

 

(c) The parties agree to amend certain terms and conditions of the Agreement as 

hereinafter set forth; and 

 

(d) The Agreement is amended effective August 1, 2018; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

 

1. Section 5, Compensation Package, paragraph 5.5, Maximum Payable, shall be deleted in 

its entirety and replaced with the following: 

 

“5.5 Maximum Payable.  The maximum compensation payable under this 

Agreement shall not exceed $3,512,000 over the three-year Initial Term of this 

Agreement.” 

 

2. Section 5, Compensation Package, paragraph 5.6, Call Coverage, shall be made part of 

the Agreement as follows: 

 

“5.6 Call Coverage.  Authority shall pay Physician for interventional 

cardiology call coverage as follows: (i) Physician shall be paid a fixed fee in the amount 

of $1,600 per 24-hour day for every weekend and holiday of call coverage assigned 

(Saturday and Sunday; designated Authority holidays only); and (ii) Physician shall be 

paid a fixed fee in the amount of $800 for every weekday night of call coverage assigned 

(Monday through Friday).”   



2 
 

3. Exhibit “A,” Job Description, shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with 

Amendment No. 1 to Exhibit “A,” Job Description, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 

this reference. 

 

4. All capitalized terms used in this Amendment and not otherwise defined, shall have the 

meaning ascribed thereto in the Agreement. 

 

5. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the 

state of California. 

 

6.  This Amendment may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 

original, but all of which taken together shall constitute one and the same instrument. 

 

7. Except as provided herein, all other terms, conditions, and covenants of the Agreement 

shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 



3 
 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Amendment No. 1 

as of the day and year first written above. 

 

PHYSICIAN 

 

 

By_______________________     

    Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O. 

 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

    

By_______________________     

    Chairman 

    Board of Governors 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Russell V. Judd          

    Chief Executive Officer         

     

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________     

    VP & General Counsel 

    Kern County Hospital Authority 

 

 
Amend1.Ghandforoush.071018 

  



4 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 1 

TO 

EXHIBIT “A” 

Job Description 

Aslan Ghandforoush, D.O. 

 

Position Description.  Reports to Chair, Department of Medicine; serves as Chief, Division of 

Cardiology; serves as full-time attending physician faculty in the Department, residency 

program, and Division of Cardiology; Physician work effort will be at a minimum 2,500 hours 

annually in teaching, administrative, and clinical activity; provides professional, comprehensive 

and safe clinical coverage for day-to-day operations, timely completion of therapeutic and 

diagnostic procedures, direct patient care, scholarly research and resident education; works 

collaboratively with clinic and Department staff and hospital administration to ensure efficient 

workflow, adequacy of support equipment, and superior patient experience. 

 

Essential Functions. 

 

1. Clinical Responsibilities. Physician shall: (i) supervise residents and medical students while 

on service; (ii) supervise and ensure competence of mid-level activity; (iii) perform 

therapeutic and diagnostic procedures within the scope of practice for cardiology specialist 

while on service; (iv) coordinate with faculty schedules and activities to provide service and 

improve efficiency for clinical activities; (v) conduct daily inpatient cardiology rounds; (vi) 

provide outpatient clinic coverage at designated Practice Sites; (vii) provide coverage for the 

echocardiology lab, interventional and invasive cardiology services for the cardiac 

catheterization lab, and services for KMC patients requiring interventional cardiology 

services at other local area hospitals; and (viii) provide weekend inpatient ward coverage and 

call coverage as assigned. 

 

2. Medical Education; Academic Responsibilities. Physician shall: (i) provide clinical 

mentoring to and evaluation of residents and medical students; (ii) establish and maintain 

academic appointment at David Geffen School of Medicine at University of California, Los 

Angeles; (iii) serve as a mentor to internal medicine residents who desire to conduct research 

or other scholarly activity; (iv) demonstrate active involvement in continuing medical 

education; (v) demonstrate active involvement in presentations, publications, and other 

scholarly activity at local, regional and national scientific societies in accordance with RRC 

program requirements; (vi) participate in development of Department curriculum; (vii) attend 

and participate in the Department didactic sessions as assigned; (viii) deliver assigned 

lectures to the internal medicine residents; and (ix) prepare residents for the cardiology 

portion of the internal medicine boards. 

 
3. Administrative Responsibilities.   

 

A. Core Faculty. Physician shall: (i) assist in clinical and administrative integration efforts 

across KMC as appropriate for the department and the division, assisting with proper 

program planning, physician recruitment, faculty development, resource allocation, analysis, 

communication and assessment; (ii) gather data through best practices and collaborates with 



5 
 

other members of the Department to recommend services that will increase productivity, 

minimize duplication of services, increase workflow efficiency, and provide the highest 

quality of care to KMC patients; (iii) support the Department Chair to develop monitoring 

tools to measure financial, access, quality and satisfaction outcomes; (iv) participate in the 

preparation, monitoring, review, and performance of clinical activity in the Department; (v) 

participate in the quality improvement and risk management activities, including peer review 

and quality control functions as assigned to services in the Department; (vi) complete 

medical records in a timely fashion and work to improve the quality, accuracy, and 

completeness of documentation; (vii) work collaboratively with other clinical departments to 

further develop a cohesive and collaborative environment across departments with a focus of 

enhancing access to patient care for inpatient and outpatient services; (viii) follow and 

comply with the medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies as well as Authority 

and KMC policies and procedures; (ix) attend department staff meetings and the annual 

medical staff meeting; (x) attend and actively participate in medical staff and hospital 

committees, as assigned; and (xi) participate in other clinical, academic, and administrative 

activities, as assigned by the Department chair.  

 

B. Chief, Division of Cardiology. Physician shall: (i) supervise the cardiology service, 

including the echocardiology lab, cardiac catheterization lab, outpatient clinics, and inpatient 

wards; (ii) manage the quality assurance work pertaining to the Division; (iii) ensure the 

cardiology service is monitored and evaluated for quality and appropriateness of care and 

that opportunities for continuous improvements are regularly reviewed and implemented; (iv) 

develop, monitor, review, and oversee performance of the Division budget; (v) provide 

support to the residency program director for didactic teaching and resident education; (vi) 

establish goals and expectations for resident and medical student rotations; (vii) prepare the 

call schedule and ensure coverage for the cardiology service; and (viii) collaborate with 

Department leadership, all other KMC physician leadership, and hospital administration in 

the development of a comprehensive cardiology clinical program. 

 

Employment Standards: 

Completion of an accredited residency program in internal medicine; completion of a fellowship 

in cardiology; two (2) years of post-residency experience in interventional and invasive 

cardiology 

AND 

Possession of a current valid Physician’s and Surgeon’s Certificate issued by the state of 

California 

AND   

Certification by the American Osteopathic Board of Internal Medicine in internal medicine-

general with subspecialty certification by the American Osteopathic Board of Internal Medicine 

in interventional cardiology and cardiovascular disease 
 

Knowledge of: The principles and practices of modern medicine; current techniques, 

procedures, and equipment applicable to the field of cardiology; principles of effective 

supervision and program development. 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed Amendment No. 15 to Agreement #180-99 with 3M Health Information Systems for 
Software License & Service Agreement.  
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary: 
 
Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed Amendment No. 15 with 3M to provide for 
specialty coding and reimbursement software. The amendment extends the current term by five years 
and increases the maximum payable by $1,961,692, which includes costs associated with the 
integration of the coding system with the Cerner Millennium Project.  
 
Coding is required for submission of claims for payment. Encoders are software programs that help 
guide the coder through the various coding conventions and rules to arrive at a correct diagnosis, 
procedural, or service code. The encoder and APR/DRG grouping software is a vital piece of the 
revenue cycle, as it aids in accuracy, compliance, coding productivity, and reimbursement functions.  
 
This amendment includes the addition of computer-assisted coding, which is our first opportunity to 
utilize computer assisted coding for facility coding, which will go into effect with the implementation of 
the Cerner Millennium Project.   
 
The decision to utilize 3M’s 360 Encompass program for coding and reimbursement functionality, in 
place of the Cerner module, was made after an extensive review of available programs, including 
attending a Cerner Event and speaking with other Cerner clients. 3M’s 360 Encompass program was 
determined to be the most efficient and functional Encoder.  
 
 
 















 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 5 to Agreement 1118-2009 with Health Care 
Interpretation Network 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign 
 
Summary:   
 

Kern Medical requests your Board approve the proposed retroactive Amendment No. 5 to Agreement 1118-
2009 with Health Care Interpretation Network (HCIN), an independent contractor, for language interpretation 
services from September 9, 2009 through June 30, 2018, extending the term for two years from July 1, 2018 
through June 30, 2020, revising the compensation methodology, and increasing the maximum payable by 
$250,000, from $607,391 to $857,391, to cover the extended term, effective July 1, 2018. 
 
 











 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
July 18, 2018 

 
SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution delegating authority to the Chief Executive Officer of the Kern County 
Hospital Authority to sign Group Purchasing Organization vendor contracts that contain nonstandard 
terms and conditions.  

 
Requested Action:  Approve; Adopt Resolution 

 
Summary:  

 

Throughout the course of business, the Kern County Hospital Authority executes a number of 

agreements through its Group Purchasing Organization (“GPO”). Contracting issues have occurred due 

to GPO contracted vendors refusing to adhere to the standard terms and conditions offered by the GPO.  

In order to capitalize on the significant cost savings that occur through participation in the GPO, Kern 

Medical recommends that your Board adopt the attached proposed resolution authorizing the Chief 

Executive Officer to sign vendor agreements that utilize GPO contracts, services and programs that 

contain non-standard terms and conditions, except as otherwise determined by Counsel.   



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:             Resolution No.     
 
DELEGATING AUTHORITY TO THE CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF THE KERN COUNTY 
HOSPITAL AUTHORITY TO SIGN GROUP 
PURCHASING ORGANIZATION VENDOR 
CONTRACTS THAT CONTAIN NONSTANDARD 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 18th 
day of July, 2018, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been delivered 
to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES: 
 
NOES: 
 
ABSENT:  
 
                   MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Kern County Hospital Authority Act (Health & Saf. Code, § 101852 et 

seq.) (the “Act”) states the Kern County Hospital Authority (“Hospital Authority”) shall 
have the power “to enter into one or more contracts or agreements, including, but not 
limited to, contracting with any public or private entity or person for management or other 



Page 2 of 3 
 

services and personnel, and to authorize the chief executive officer to enter into contracts, 
execute all instruments, and do all things necessary or convenient in the exercise of the 
powers granted in the [Act].”  (Health & Saf. Code, § 101855(a)(9).); and 

 
(b) On September 20, 2017, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 

2017-007, which delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital 
Authority to enter into specified contracts subject to approval as to legal form by Counsel.   
Approval by the Board of Governors is required if Counsel is unable to approve a contract 
as to form; and  

 
(c) On February 15, 2017, the Board of Governors approved the transfer its 

group purchasing affiliation from Vizient, Inc. to Quorum Purchasing Advantage, LLC 
(“QPA”) to increase its purchasing power through the availability of aggregate pricing and 
to secure significant cost savings through participation in HealthTrust Purchasing Group 
(“HPG”) distribution agreements; and 
 
 (d) The group purchasing of supplies, materials, and equipment is a 
fundamental activity of the alliance operated by QPA.  QPA contracts for high quality 
supplies and services with reputable vendors.  Benefits of group purchasing through QPA 
include controlling and reducing supply costs, with a primary objective to help ensure that 
patients receive safe and efficacious care and allows for efficiency of contracting due to 
approved standard terms and conditions; and 
 

(e) The Board of Governors entered into an agreement with QPA for access to 
the HPG portfolio of contracts, effective February 1, 2017 (the “Agreement”); and 

 
(f) The Agreement is for a term of 60 months; and 
 
(g) Contracting issues have occurred due to QPA-participating vendors refusing 

to adhere to the standard terms and conditions offered by HPG; and  
 
(h) The Board of Governors desires to delegate authority to the Chief Executive 

Officer to enter into such agreements with non-standard terms and conditions, subject to 
continued review by Counsel.      
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board hereby authorizes the Chief Executive Officer to sign vendor 
agreements that utilize HPG contracts, services and programs made available through QPA 
that contain non-standard terms and conditions, except as otherwise determined by 
Counsel.   

 



Page 3 of 3 
 

3. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force and operative 
as of the 18th day of July, 2018. 

 
4.  The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
   

Kern Medical Center 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Legal Services Department 
  Materials Management  
  County Administrative Office 
 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – May 2018 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary:   
 
The following items have budget variances for the month of May 2018:  
 
Indigent Funding: 
Each month, Kern Medical only recognizes ninety-five percent of the total accrued amount receivable from 
indigent funding.  This is a conservative approach to reserve five percent of the total indigent funding 
receivables to account for the possibility of future changes in calculations or changes in the method that the 
funds are allocated among California’s public hospitals.  The favorable budget variance for the month is due to 
AB 915 outpatient DSH funding that was received and recorded for the month of May 2018. 
 
Other Revenue: 
Other revenue has an unfavorable budget variance for May due to an adjustment for over accrued Medical 
Education Tuition in prior months. 
  
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance on both a month to date and a year to date basis.  
Kern Medical continues to rely on contracted nurse staffing to supplement the nursing departments while 
aggressively trying to recruit full time employed nurses. 
 
Medical Fees: 
Medical fees have an unfavorable budget variance for the month of May in part because of the opening of Kern 
Medical’s new orthopedic hand center and the corresponding fees paid to the orthopedic surgeons Dr. Bowen 
and Dr. Malerich.  There was also an increase Locum Tenens fees for trauma coverage. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Other professional fees have a favorable budget variance for the month of May.  The creation of a Kern Medical 
legal department has substantially decreased legal fees from outside law firms and there are no longer legal fees 
billed to Kern Medical from the County Counsel.  Kern Medical also no longer accrues for AMF marketing 
expenses and no longer accrues for Mercer human resources consulting.  Both of these vendors were included 
in the FY 2018 budget. 
 
Supplies Expenses: 
Supplies expense has an unfavorable budget variance for the month of May due in part to higher than average 
surgical and medical care supplies expenses for the month.  Pharmaceutical expenses also continue to run 
higher than budget, but at the year-to-date trend. 



Budget Variances for Operating Expenses 
May 2018 
Page 2 of 2 
 

 

 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased services has a favorable budget variance for the month due to an adjustment to reduce the Health 
Advocates expense accrual based on actual invoices received. 
 
Other Expenses: 
Other expenses are over budget for the month of May due to an increase in office rent for several new medical 
office building leases that were not included in the FY 2018 budget.  There is also a corresponding increase in 
utilities expense each month due to the expansion. 
 
Depreciation Expenses: 
The increase in depreciation expense for the month of May is due to the following four Construction in Progress 
projects that were put in service during the month:  E Power for B & C Wings, 3D Patient Remodel project, B 
Wing re-roofing project, and the Sagebrush phase II clinic remodel project. 
 
 
 
 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – MAY 2018

JULY 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
 
July 18, 2018 
 
Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 
Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 
Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3-month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic Indicators 
for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – MAY 2018

JULY 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on July 18, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and improve 
the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The closed 
session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on July 18, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and improve 
the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The closed 
session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health facilities (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on July 18, 2018, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold a closed 
session on July 18, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X     CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee organizations: 
Service Employees International Union, Local 521; Unrepresented Employees 
(Government Code Section 54957.6)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	07.18.18  03 Recognition - 2018 Residents.pdf
	KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY�BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	2018 Kern Medical Residents

	07.18.18  08c IBM Credit Resolution.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
	In the matter of:             Resolution No. ____________
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	MONA ALLEN
	Mona Allen
	RESOLUTION

	County Administrative Office
	Kern Medical Center

	07.18.18  12 Resolution re delegating authority to CEO to sign GPO vendor contracts with nonstandard terms and conditions clean.pdf
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS
	OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY
	In the matter of:             Resolution No.
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	MONA A. ALLEN
	Mona A. Allen
	RESOLUTION
	(b) On September 20, 2017, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2017-007, which delegated authority to the Chief Executive Officer of the Hospital Authority to enter into specified contracts subject to approval as to legal form by Counsel.   ...
	(c) On February 15, 2017, the Board of Governors approved the transfer its group purchasing affiliation from Vizient, Inc. to Quorum Purchasing Advantage, LLC (“QPA”) to increase its purchasing power through the availability of aggregate pricing and t...


	Kern Medical Center
	Chief Executive Officer
	Chief Financial Officer

	07.18.18  13b CFO Presentation May 2018.pdf
	BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT�kern medical – MAY 2018
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10

	07.18.18  14b CEO Presentation May 2018.pdf
	BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT�kern medical – MAY 2018
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7




